If I Had a Country

John W. Glover

Copyright © 2010 by John W. Glover. All rights reserved worldwide. The reproduction or utilization of this work in whole or in part in any form by any electronic, mechanical or other means is forbidden without the express permission of the author. Adding or removing text from this work is also forbidden. The information, stories and articles contained in this eBook are the opinion of the author based on his personal observations and years of experience. Neither the author nor his family assume any liability whatsoever for the use of information contained in this publication. Use this information at your own risk.

A note from John:

You have my permission to resell or give away this ebook (If I Had a Country). I reserve all copyright rules stated above. My true goal is not to make money off of the sale of this ebook, but to get this ebook into the hands of as many Americans as possible, because I want a free strong America for the next generation.

About the Book: (If I Had a Country)

The U.S. is under siege! It is quickly evolving into a Nation its founding fathers would not recognize. Could the U.S. become a third world nation if this Progressive tsunami is not reversed? This book describes what the Author believes will have to be done. Will a new Country have to be formed or can the U.S. be saved? This book is the best hope for people who believe in Freedom, Liberty, Independence, Self-reliance, Honor, Morals, Pride, and Smaller Government.

About the Author:

John William Glover was born 1948 in Clio, Louisiana. John joined the U.S. Air Force in 1970 and served for over 37 years of combined military and federal service. Self-made writer, inventor, historian, and home builder, he has degrees in electronics, automotive repair, and government. He possesses an A&P mechanics license plus a Commercial Pilots license.

About the Cover:

A bewildered and tired bald eagle on a deserted beach, searches for his country. For the Republic that is fading fast. (We must once again make the eagle proud and restore his Republic).

If I Had a Country JOHN W. GLOVER

Table of Contents

Introduction	1
Democracy Versus Representative Republic	2
Government	8
The Justice System	18
Foreign Relations	26
Citizenship and Immigration	29
Social Responsibilities	34
Taxes, Property and Utilities	46
Capitalism	54
Business and Industry	57
The Environment	59
Media	63
Education	66
Questions & Answers	70

Introduction

Why would I want my own country? Because the U.S. Government has strayed so far from the Constitution, the Declaration of Independence and common sense. What they have done is criminal. Because of this I don't believe the U.S. can be saved without starting over. This book is about how I would setup a Country that I believe would more represent what the Founding Fathers wanted. What worked until the Progressives started destroying it bit by bit.

Because of the anti-American, anti-Capitalism, anti-Christian, anti-Freedom, anti-Constitution attitude of the present Progressive U.S. Government I am writing this book of what I believe is America's best hope to regain its freedom.

My country will be named the Republic of New America (RNA). Yes my country will be a Representative Republic - not a Democracy. A Republic just like America used to be before Teddy Roosevelt, Woodrow Wilson and Franklin Roosevelt got hold of it. These three Progressives (one Republican, two Democrats) ran rough shot over the Constitution our founding fathers gave us. This book is not about how these three men did this. Find an old history book (one written before liberals rewrote American History) and read this truth for yourself. My book is about a new start for the 50% of Americans that no longer have a voice in a Progressive ran country with a dishonest Progressive U.S. News Media.



Democracy Versus Representative Republic



Page | 2

These succinct definitions of what a Democracy is and what a Representative Republic is was produced by the US Army in 1928. These definitions were quietly withdrawn soon after the Progressives came to power. Yes, before the Progressive takeover of America, we were a Republic.

Democracy:

A government of the masses. Authority derived through mass meeting or any other form of "direct" expression. Results in mobocracy (mob rule). Attitude toward property is communisticnegating property rights. Attitude toward law is that the will of the majority shall regulate, whether it be based upon deliberation or governed by passion, prejudice, or impulse, without restraint or regard to consequences. Results in demagogue-ism license, agitation, discontent, anarchy.

Democracy is the "direct" rule of the people and has been repeatedly tried without success. A certain Professor Alexander Fraser Tyler, nearly two centuries ago, had this to say about Democracy, "A Democracy cannot exist as a permanent form of Government. It can only exist until the voters discover they can vote themselves largess (generous gifts) out of the public treasury. From that moment on the majority always votes for the candidate promising the most benefits from the public treasury with the result that Democracy always collapses over a loose fiscal policy, always to be followed by a Dictatorship."

A democracy is majority rule and is destructive of liberty because there is no law to prevent the majority from trampling on individual rights. Whatever the majority says goes! A lynch mob is an example of pure democracy in action. There is only one dissenting vote, and that is cast by the person at the end of the rope.

The U.S. Democracy is now controlled by Liberal Groups. I define these groups as:

Liberal : A person who believes Government rules, individual rights if any are decided by government.

Progressive: Hard core Liberal.

Socialist: Hard core Progressive

Remember - Liberalism is the kid brother of Progressivism who is the kid brother of Socialism who is the kid brother of Marxism.

Representative Republic:

In a Representative Republic, authority is derived through the election by the people of public officials best fitted to represent them. The attitude towards property is showing respect for laws and individual rights, and a sensible economic procedure. The attitude toward law is the administration of justice in accord with fixed principles and established evidence, with a strict regard to consequences. A greater number of citizens and extent of territory may be brought within its compass avoiding the dangerous extreme of either tyranny or mobocracy resulting in statesmanship, liberty, reason, justice, state's rights, contentment, and progress.

A representative republic is a form of government under a constitution which provides for the election of an executive and a legislative body, who working together in a representative capacity, have all the power of appointment, all the power of legislation all the power to raise revenue and appropriate expenditures, and are

required to create a judiciary to pass upon the justice and legality of their governmental acts and to recognize certain inherent individual rights. Take away any one or more of these elements and you are drifting into autocracy. Add one or more to these elements and you are drifting into democracy.

Our Constitutional fathers, familiar with the strength and weakness of both autocracy and democracy, with fixed principles definitely in mind, defined a **representative republican** form of government. They "made a very marked distinction between a representative republic and a democracy and said repeatedly and emphatically that they had founded a representative republic." This is clearly spelled out in the U.S. Constitution.

A representative republic is a government of law under a Constitution. The Constitution holds the government in check and prevents the majority (acting through their government) from violating the rights of the individual. Under this system of government a lynch mob is illegal. The suspected criminal cannot be denied his right to a fair trial even if a majority of the citizenry demands otherwise.

The deliberations of the Constitutional Convention of 1787 were held in strict secrecy. Many anxious citizens gathered outside Independence Hall in order to learn what had been produced behind closed doors. The answer came immediately. A Mrs. Powel of Philadelphia asked Ben Franklin, "Well, Doctor, what have we got, a republic or a monarchy?"

With no hesitation whatsoever, Franklin responded, "A republic, if you can keep it."

This exchange was recorded by Constitution signer James McHenry in a diary entry that was later reproduced in the 1906 American Historical Review.

U.S. Citizens have done a terrible job of keeping their Republic. It's time for good citizens to take the Republic back!

The Creed of the Republic of New America

As a Citizen of the Republic of New America I choose to soar to the highest heights for a view unknown by the vast majority of others. I do not choose to be a common person. It is my right to be uncommon. I seek opportunity... not security. I do not wish to be a kept citizen, humbled and dulled by having the state look after me. I want to take the calculated risk, to dream and build, to fail and succeed. I take responsibility for my actions and expect others to do likewise. I refuse to barter incentive for a dole. I prefer the challenges of life to guaranteed existence, the thrill of fulfillment to the stale calm of utopia. I will not trade freedom for benefits (free stuff), nor my dignity for a hand out. I will never cower before any earthly master nor bend to any threat. It is my heritage to stand straight, proud, and unafraid; to think and act for myself. To enjoy the benefits of my creations and to face the world boldly and say; *this, with God's help I have done*.

Have you noticed the word Responsibility in our Creed. A Republic will not work without it's people taking responsibility. If you are not a responsible person then a Democracy (kept citizen) is probably better for you. Did you also notice what our Creed says about a hand out. In the RNA you might get a hand up but never a hand out. I wish for you to keep your dignity and use the hand up to better yourself by become a productive citizen. "If you love wealth greater than liberty, the tranquility of servitude greater than the animating contest for freedom, go home from us in peace. We seek not your counsel, nor your arms. Crouch down and lick the hand that feeds you; May your chains set lightly upon you, and may posterity forget that you were our countrymen."

~Samuel Adams

The Pledge of the Republic of New America

I pledge my allegiance to the Republic of New America. One Nation, truly under God with freedom, liberty, and justice for all.

"It is an uphill struggle, but I wish that we could distinguish more carefully between freedom and liberty. These conditions are not the same, though they are certainly related. Freedom is the absence of restraint- a physical circumstance. Liberty, on the other hand, is a political situation denoting the lawful capability of the citizen to defend himself and his near and dear without interference from the state. Note that the Declaration of Independence forcibly and particularly establishes the blessings of liberty upon ourselves and our posterity.

~The late Col. Jeff Cooper



Government



Our Constitution

The laws of the Republic of New America (RNA) will be based on the original U.S. Constitution, the Declaration of Independence, plus John's laws (After all it's my Country). The before mentioned documents will be used to form a new Constitution that offers equal Liberty and Justice for all. The Constitution of the RNA will not be a living breathing document as the Progressives has now made the U.S. Constitution. They know anything that lives and breathes can be aborted (killed). To change the Constitution of the RNA will require an 80% vote by the Representatives of the people. Our Constitution will be written by the elected Representatives of the RNA upon its founding, thus it is not available for publication in this book.

"Hold on , my friends, to the Constitution and to the Republic for which it stands. Miracles do not cluster and what has happened once in 6,000 years may not happen again. Hold on to the Constitution for if the American Constitution should fail, there will be anarchy throughout the world."

~Daniel Webster

Government

The RNA will consist of a Federal Government led by five leaders (no president). I don't believe one person should be so powerful that he can veto the will of the people's representatives, bypass congress with executive orders and circumvent the constitution and laws at will. The 5 equal leaders of the RNA will carry out the Duties of the Federal Government and vote on bills passed by the House of Representatives concerning the Nation. The majority decision will be acted into law.

The selection of the 5 leaders will be the duty of the State Representatives. This will be done by vote after debate and discussion in the House of Representatives at the Federal Capital. The 5 leaders will come from the body of State Representatives. In other words they will be selecting 5 of their peers. Each leader must come from a different state. The selected leaders will take an oath to the RNA to be fair and impartial to the whole nation. In other words no red states, no blue states, just equal treatment for all of the people of the RNA. Each State that lost a State Representative to leadership will replace said Representative.

The selecting of the State Representatives will be done by the Statesmen of each state. Each state will select 5 Representatives to serve that State at the Federal Capital. These Representatives will make laws that will be sent to the Leaders for approval. The 5 State Representatives will come from the Body of Statesmen at the State Capital. In other words they will select 5 of their peers. The five Statesmen chosen as State Representatives will be replaced by a vote of the people from the County each came from.

The selection of Statesmen will be done by the people of each State. Each county in each State will elect one (1) Statesman to serve at its State Capital. As an example if a State in the RNA has 25 counties that State will have 25 Statesmen at it's Capital. It is the duty of each statesman to represent the people of his or her county.

I set the Government in the RNA up this way so that the people who serve, from the Statesmen to the Leaders have all been vetted by the people locally. As an example, no one can become a Leader without first becoming a Statesman and this Statesman is chosen by the people who know him or her best, the people of the County he or she lives in. This makes for better government because the people are electing neighbors they know, not voting for strangers many miles away. This should make for a more moral government also. This is a true Representative Republic, what the U.S. was supposed to be.

Any Leader can be removed by a 60% vote of the House of Representatives. Any State Representative can be removed by a 60% vote of the Statesmen of that State. Any Statesman can be removed by a petition of 60% of the people of the County that Statesman was elected from.

You may have noticed that I have no Senate. Why do you need one? This is just another branch of government that makes Government more complicated and expensive. I know this deviates from the U.S. Constitution but I told you in the beginning my country's constitution will be a modified version of the U.S. Constitution. My wish (just as most of our founding fathers) is to make government smaller but still functional. Remember: Less Government Is Best Government!

Duties of the 5 Leaders

The Leaders are responsible to see that the Duties of the Federal Government are followed at all times by working closely with the House of Representatives. They (by majority) will sign laws/budgets presented to them by the House of Representatives. A law/budget with a 70% or greater approval from the House of Representatives cannot be vetoed. Under no circumstance are they allowed to make law (executive orders), only the House of Representatives can make National law. The term for leaders will be 5 years.

Duties of the Federal Government

In the RNA (unlike in the U.S.) most of the powers to govern will resides with the States. Power to the Federal Government is limited but very important. Here they are: The Federal Government will be responsible for protection of the Nation by providing a very strong Military. The Federal Government will be responsible for holding the Nation together by facilitating negotiations between the States that have disagreements. The Federal Government will be responsible for the operation of the Prisons (one in each State). The Federal Government will be responsible for the forensic lab (secure storage of DNA, etc.). The Federal Government will be responsible for emergency relief coordination with the affected States and their local governments. The Federal Government will assure that emergency supplies and equipment will be moved into the affected areas using the military as needed. When asked for assistance in looting or riot control from the States, they are obligated to comply with military help. The Federal Government will save tax revenue back for all emergencies (NDRF) National Disaster Relief Fund. Other duties can be assigned to the Federal Government by the State Representatives (House of Representatives) with a 60% vote. (A friendly warning to the House of Representatives, don't relinquish so much power that you become irrelevant). You are the people's house, don't let the people down, do your job.

Federal Capital set-up

The Federal Capital (Liberty City) will be in the center of a traffic Circle. All Government buildings will be built inside of this circle.

No one can take residence inside of this circle. This is a must. If someone were allowed to live inside the Liberty City city limits that person would get out of paying all Flat taxes except Federal (only 5%).

Duties of the State Representatives (House of Representatives)

The State Representatives (SR) first duty is to write a fair, just and moral Constitution for the RNA using the original U.S. Constitution, and The Declaration of Independence. The SR duties are to make laws in accordance to the new Constitution but only law needed to better the Nation and its People (NO BS LAW). They are responsible in determining which governmental departments are absolutely needed. No BS departments allowed. They are to select leaders to run these departments. They will also Select 9 Federal Judges (Supreme Court in the U.S.).

It is very important that each SR spend time with his/her people, at the State level, to learn their wishes. They should also be in close contact with the Statesmen of their State. When in session these SR's should communicate with each other (brainstorm) to figure out what is working best for the people and pass legislation accordingly; since the House of Representatives alone with the 5 leaders make up the Federal Government, the House of Representatives are responsible for budgeting the Federal Government. This will be done with the Flat tax and import fees sent to the Federal Government by the People. There will be no room for Pork. Spend every penny wisely. The term for State Representatives will be 5 years.

Duties of the Statesmen

The Statesmen will elect the State Representative as spelled out above. The Statesmen will work closely with their Representatives in the House of Representatives. The Statesmen will select the State Governor and Lieutenant Governor from the body of Statesmen (their peers). The counties these two Statesmen came from will replace them, by a vote of the People. The Statesman is to represent the people who put him/her in office fairly and should hold town hall meetings often. The Statesmen will enact laws and budget funds as needed to keep the State running. The Statesmen will select State Judges. The Governor will sign laws/budgets into existence. A law/budget with a 70% or greater approval by the Statesmen cannot be vetoed. The term for the Statesmen will be 5 years.

Duties of the States

The State governments should work with each local government fairly to achieve what is best for the people of said State. It is the Responsibility of the People to see that their State is honest, moral, fair, and just. Don't get Lazy like the people of the U.S. It is my wish for each State to be the best it can be. I wish for friendly competition between the States. Competition makes a Win/Win for the people and the Nation. The State that treats its People best will have the most people thus the most tax dollars.

Duties of the Local Governments

Local Governments (Counties, Cities and Towns) should provide fire and police protection. Local officials will be chosen by the people through public elections. The local governments should work closely with their State Government to provide education for it's citizens. (Don't let the Federal Government take this from you like in the U.S.).

State set-up

I place this here just as a suggestion on how I think the State should be set-up knowing the final decision rest with the citizens. My suggestion: I think each State should be divided into counties of equal or near equal sizes. The town/city limits should touch each other or the border of neighboring states (for police and fire protection everywhere). This will also ensure that everyone pays local taxes (equal taxation). If someone lives in an area where there is no town/city limit that person must pay his/her local taxes to the nearest town/city to him/her that is in his/her State.

Government Greed

Here are just some things that I believe government should not do: Government should not give in to the demand by its citizen to spend more money than it is taking in. Priorities must be set so that what is needed is taken care of first, not what is wanted. Government should not be buying votes with the people's money. Government should not spend money it doesn't have by borrowing. Government should not be investing the people's money in private businesses. Government should refrain from bailing out companies too big to fail with the people's money. If these companies are worth saving let the private sector save them. Government should not be building, with the people's money, apartments, shopping centers, sports venues, or anything that is the business of the private sector. If a state/city wants a new stadium let some corporation build it. No city (government) has the right to use the people's money to serve only a small percentage of its citizens. Most citizens can't even afford tickets to one of these sporting events.

Citizens should raise funds for their pet projects by public/private contributions not Government funds. Citizens should grow up and stop this "I WANT" mentality. If you want it, go get it yourself.

Remember: A Government that gives you all you want can take all it wants (first your money, then your freedoms).

Military

The RNA will have a strong military for self-protection only. Leave us alone and we will leave you alone. This usually doesn't work but I would like to try it in the beginning. There is always some bully wanting to UN-leash terrorism on your nation. Our military will consist of 3 branches: Navy, Army, and Air Force. The Navy will be responsible for water patrol to a range of 200 miles off of the RNA's coast. If air support is needed the Air Force will supply it. The Army will be responsible for protecting the RNA from a land invasion. If air support is needed the Air Force will supply it. The Air Force will be responsible to work with the Army and Navy plus to protect the air space over the Nation up to 200 miles off our coast. All forces (branches) will train together as one force.

Each branch will consist of 1000 (or as needed) professional military men and women. These professionals will train all citizen soldiers, sailors, and airmen. Yes, our military will be mostly made up of civilians. This citizen military will be professionally trained and ready for call-up at a moment's notice.

Every young citizen from the age of 19 years will belong to one of the 3 branches of service. Minimum of 3 years of service is required. Training (drills) will be 2 weekends per month and four weeks per year. More training might be required to learn some skills. Pay will be according to rank. The amount of pay per rank will be decided by the Federal Government according to the military budget.

After the three year requirement is met, the service member can remain in the military if desired, (if wanted). The best service members could be hired to replace the full time professional trainers as they retire.



The Justice System



Judges

Federal Judges (Supreme Court in the U.S.) will be appointed by the State Representatives not the President as it is done in the U.S. Politics, or a Political Party, should not decide who will judge over the people. The Federal Judges duties will be similar to the U.S. Supreme Court Judges. However they will not Make Law or Change Law. They are to interpret the Constitution and Laws of the Republic of New America fairly with malice to none, according to the Oath they took.

There will be 9 Federal Judges. Each Judge will be nominated by a State Representatives. The House of Representatives will vet this Judge and have an up or down vote to decide his or her fate.

This procedure will be repeated until all 9 Judges are seated. This procedure will be repeated as judges retire.

No Federal Judge can serve more than 7 years. No lifetime judges as in the U.S.

The House of Representatives can remove any Federal Judge with a 70% vote.

State Judges will be selected using the same procedures but will be selected by the Statesmen of that State in which the Judge will preside. Each State will choose the number of Judges needed. It is up to the State to decide how long their judges will serve and under what grounds a State Judge can be removed.

There will be no local judges. When a judge is needed at the local level the State will assign one of the State Judges to the local case. I do this because I do not want any local authority appointing a judge that might be favorable to that authority.

Law Suits

If a law suit is filed and the person (plaintiff) who files the lawsuit loses that person is responsible for his/her court cost plus the court cost of the accused (defendant). The amount the plaintiff pays cannot be more that what the defendant would have paid. All court cost must be stipulated before the start of the trial. Court cost is the total cost of going to court (court fees, legal fees, etc.). These fees must be reasonable. This is to be determined by the Judge.

Some will say that no one will file a lawsuit because of the cost if that person loses. I say, before filling this person must convince a lawyer that he/she has been wronged. If there is a strong enough case, most lawyers will take the case, for a percentage if he or she wins and be responsibility for legal fees if he or she loses. These law suit rules also apply to any lawsuit (public, private, business, company, corporation, etc).

The Republic of New America's position on crime

The punishment of criminals has been debated since civilization began. Many countries such as England and France send their harden criminals to remote locations to protect the masses. Local tax payer supported prisons is another method of dealing with criminals but this punishes those who are innocent (the tax payers). Why should good law abiding citizens pay for the lodging, food, cable television, recreation, etc. of criminals? They shouldn't! These criminals should earn their own livelihood. Unlike in the U.S., criminals in the RNA will build their own lodging, grow their own food, and have no cable television, weight room, or library. Radios are ok. A mobile, book mobile will arrive weekly for book checkout. With a 12 hour per day work schedule they will get a lot of exercise and a chance to learn how to make a living upon release (if released).

The RNA's three categories (CAT) of crime

CAT I: These are crimes of *Misdemeanor. The convicted person will be require to pay a fine, If the person convicted of the misdemeanor cannot or will not pay the fine the convicted person will be allowed to remain home but must perform community service for 4 hours per day before or after his or her regular job shift or for 12 hours if this person has no job. This will be repeated until the hour requirement decided by the court is met. If the convicted person refused to perform community service or pay a fine he or she will be treated as a CAT II criminal.

CAT I crimes will be handled at the local level by the communities the crime was committed in. A judge appointed by the State will travel to said community (Town/City) to hear both sides. The judge's decision is final; if found guilty, the accused will pay a fine or perform community service in the amount of hours assigned by the judge. Law enforcement in said community will monitor the task until completed. The accused can only be assigned public work. Private work is prohibited. The State DA has the responsibility to ensure the accused is not mistreated or abused. Hard work is not abuse. The DA should make sure all hours assigned is worked. A work waver signed by the convicted person will be required to protect the community (law suits).

*Crimes that are considered misdemeanors are disturbing the peace, shoplifting, littering, petty theft, speeding, traffic violations and trespassing. When there is no violence involved. Plus public drunkenness when there is no DWI or violence involved. Other

misdemeanors crimes can be added by the local government as needed.

CAT II: These are crimes of muggings, robbery, rape, and other violent crimes without death to the victim. Once found guilty of these crimes the convict will be required to perform hard labor for 12 hours per day for the length of the sentence. These convicts will do public work projects under guard. The convicts that cannot be trusted outside of the fence will work in the chow hall, laundry, and other duties necessary to keep the prison running. An escape will be treated as a second CAT II crime. This person will have 2 CAT II crimes shown in his or her records.

CAT III: These are crimes of first or second degree murder. People convicted of these crimes will be in Prison for life. Escape from prison will be punished by death. *Hideous crimes will fall under this category also but the criminal may be imprisoned or put to death. The jury will decide this. The person put to death will have his/her vital organs removed so that others will live. Now this is justice. Here is a person who brutally murdered another person and broke many hearts. In life he/she was evil and took lives but in death lives are saved.

CAT II and CAT III crimes will require a trial with a lawyer (one representing each side), a judge appointed by the State, and 9 jury members. The RNA and the attorney for the accused will rely heavily on forensic to prove guilt or innocence of the accused. This is why finger prints and DNA are required for each citizens of the RNA. With everyone's finger prints and DNA on file I hope those with an evil heart will think twice before committing a CAT II or CAT III crime. Those found guilty of committing a third CAT II crime will be punished as a CAT III criminal. In the U.S over 60% of all crimes are commuted by repeat offenders. These criminals usually get an early release. They commit the same or worse crimes over and over again, against good citizens and never get a more severe punishment, if punished at all. This will not happen in the RNA.

There will be one prison in each State ran by the Federal Government. Each prison will house both CAT II and CAT III prisoners separated at all times by an electrified fence. Both sides of the prison will consist of a tent city (lodging), chow hall, laundry and latrine. The boundary of the prison will have electrified fences and guards authorized to shoot.

Any CAT II or CAT III prisoner attempting to murder or murders another prisoner or guard will be put to death. There will be wireless cameras with audio everywhere. The State will send a Judge to the prison to view the video and hear the evidence. The Judge's decision is final. These cameras will not only keep the prisoners in line but the guards also. They will help keep peace and order in the prison. Prison rooms/tents will be lighted at all times so the cameras will see all that goes on. These people lost their privacy when they committed CAT II and CAT III crimes.

While I am on this subject everyone in the RNA will be responsible for his/her actions (The Rich, the Poor, everyone no exception). We will not accept any excuse such as: It's substance abuse's fault, it's my parent's fault, it's society's fault, it's Bush's fault, I am crazy, or the devil made me do it. Regardless what made you do it, you did it!

First-degree Murder

First-degree murder is the most serious class of murder. The defendant kills with premeditation, deliberation and some element of malice. In practical terms, a prosecuting attorney must prove that the defendant planned to kill his victim and was aware that his actions would result in the victim's death.

Second-degree Murder

Second-degree murder is killing without premeditation or deliberation. It's clear that the defendant intended to harm the victim, but not that he intended to kill him. Second-degree murder charges often arise after a defendant intended to assault a victim, but ended up killing him.

Third-degree Murder

Third-degree murder is sometimes referred to as manslaughter and can be defined as a killing that does not involve malice aforethought.

Note: A crime of third degree murder could be tried as a CAT II or CAT III crime depending on the circumstances. This is to be decided by the Judge presiding over the case.

Sometime when people are killed is has to be determined if it was an accident or murder. This will be determined by the DA of the State the person was killed in. * Hideous: horrible or frightful to the senses; repulsive; very ugly; shocking or revolting to the moral sense; sickening; mass murder; or terrorism.



Foreign Relations



Trade

The Nation of the RNA will trade with other Nations when this trade benefits the RNA as much or more than the Nation the RNA is trading with. I would like to see more trade with South America and Canada. The U.S. Seems to not want to trade with their neighbors to the South for some reason. They seem to rather trade with Nations that take advantage of them. They don't see that trading with South Americans builds up all of the Americas. The good neighbor policy!

The United Nations (U.N.)

The Republic of New America will have nothing to do with this organization (the U.N.). I believe they are incompetent and ran by radicals who are anti-individual freedom but pro One World Order Government control, with only the U.S. Constitution standing in their way. I believe this is why Progressives want to change the Constitution. I could write a book on what this organization is doing. If I did, I would never finish this book...which is probably what they want.

"Hold on , my friends, to the Constitution and to the Republic for which it stands. Miracles do not cluster and what has happened once in 6,000 years, may not happen again. Hold on to the Constitution for if the American Constitution should fail, there will be anarchy throughout the world."

~Daniel Webster

Embassies

The Nation of the RNA will have no embassies abroad (too costly) or allow any embassy in the RNA (too much of a security risk).



Citizenship and Immigration



Who's welcome?

The Republic of New America welcomes all people who will work (keep your lazy), who believe in taking responsibility for his or her actions (keep those who blame others), who believe in self-reliance (keep those who demand handouts), who are honest and moral (keep your cheats and criminals), who wish for liberty and freedom (keep your kept citizen), who wish for a better education (keep your brain washed).

Here in the RNA we don't hate the rich, we will not take what they earned legally. In fact we need them to create jobs. I never got a job from a poor man that could provide me a decent living. If we destroy the rich, who will hire the poor and middle class? Who will give them a chance to move up?

Here in the RNA we don't hate the poor. We want you to have the opportunity to become rich. Here in the Republic of New America there is still an American Dream that is achievable because Government will stay out of the way. Less Government is Best Government. This only works when the people are honest and moral.

What makes a good citizen?

My answer is: When a person leaves his or her country better than he or she found it. To do this, that person must be honest, moral and must do the right things always, especially when no one is looking; must not be a burden on government, must be fair to all with the belief that we are all brothers and sisters in the eyes of the Lord (God's Children). Must fight if necessary to protect his or her brothers and sisters (Country). Must teach the youth what good citizen ship is by example. Do these things and you will be a very good citizen of The Republic of New America and most welcomed.

In the U.S., citizenship (that of their forefathers) is not even taught in most schools much less practiced. There, it is about "give me mine Now" with no regard to the tax payers or future generations.

The U.S. government is spending like there is no tomorrow. I wonder if they love their children, because they are borrowing (from China) and are spending (wasting) their children's future. They are turning their children into slaves. "It is written that the borrower is a Slave to the Lender".

Because of the greed of the present U.S. Government their children will someday belong to China, or Russia, or Radical Islam. This is happening because its citizens (about 50% as of this writing) are not willing to leave the U.S. better than they found it. For them it's "what can government do for me" when it should be "what can I do for my country and my children". For the first time in history the next generation of U.S. children will be poorer than their parents. What a disgrace!

Immigration

The Republic of New America believes in Immigration, Legal Immigration! If any person wishes to immigrate to the RNA, that person must be able to work. Must agree to obey the laws of the RNA. Must agree to submit a DNA and fingerprint sample (same as other citizens). Must learn the English language. Must not be wanted for any criminal activity. Must take the pledge and agree to the creed of the Republic of New America. We welcome all who can meet the above standards, who come to the RNA with a desire to better themselves and the RNA. Here is the text from an email sent to me by a U.S. citizen. It is about free stuff and immigration:

"I bought a bird feeder. I hung it on my back porch and filled It with seed. What a beauty of a bird feeder it was. Within a Week we had hundreds of birds Taking advantage of the Continuous flow of free and easily accessible food. But then the birds started Building nests in the boards of the patio, above the table, and next to the barbecue. Then came the poop. It was everywhere: on the patio tile, the chairs, the table ... everywhere! Then some of the birds turned mean. They would Dive bomb me and try to Peck me even though I had Fed them out of my own Pocket. And others birds were Boisterous and loud. They Sat on the feeder and Squawked and screamed at All hours of the day and night and demanded that I fill it When it got low on food. After a while, I couldn't even sit on my own back porch anymore. So I took down the Bird feeder and in three days the birds were gone. I cleaned up their mess and took down the many nests they had built all over the patio. Soon, the back yard was like it used to bequiet, serene....and no one demanding their Rights to a free meal. Now let's see. This (U.S.) government gives out *free* food, *subsidized* housing, *free* medical care and *free* education, and allows anyone born here to be an automatic Citizen. Then the illegal's came by the tens of thousands. Suddenly our taxes went up to pay for free services; small apartments that are housing 5 families; you have to wait 6 hours to be seen by an emergency room doctor; your child's second grade class is behind other schools because Over half the class doesn't speak English. Corn Flakes now come in a Bilingual box; I have to 'press one ' to hear my bank Talk to me in English, and People waving flags other Than 'Old Glory' are Squawking and screaming In the streets, demanding More rights and free stuff. Just my opinion, but maybe it's time for the U.S. government to take down

the bird feeder. If you agree, pass it on; if not, just continue cleaning up the poop." (end of email)

There will be no bird feeders put up by the Government of The Republic of New America thus there will be no Poop to clean up. Any person entering the RNA illegally will be charged with a Cat. II crime. Upon completing his or her sentence this person will be deported back to his or her country of origin. Any person born of illegals will have to leave with them.



Social Responsibilities



Page | 34

Health-care

No country can provide free health care for its citizens when 66% of its citizens (in the U.S.) practice one or more of these: Smokes, Booze, Drugs, Reckless Activities, Obesity or Self Abuse. This is why government run health care will not work. Those really in need of quality health care will not get it because the 66% mentioned above will absorb all of the (funds) money available.

Everywhere this, government health care, has been tried the quality of care goes down or the government eventually goes bankrupt. Just too many high risk people (mostly their fault) needing care for any government to absorb the cost.

The solution is to buy your own health insurance according to your habits. Liberals will say, this is not fair; it will be too expensive for some people. I say change your habits. Why should the citizens of the RNA be responsible for another person's habits or insurance?

I realize this is not a perfect solution but if there is competition among insurance companies, doctors, pharmaceutical companies, and hospitals and with the citizen able to buy from any legal company offering health insurance, all of this should make the cost less. There is no easy solution because some people just will not buy health insurance. They may have the money to practice all of the habits listed above plus afford cell phones, tattoos, video games, concert tickets, etc. but not health insurance. At minimum these people could afford Catastrophic Healthcare Insurance. It is very reasonable.

What is Catastrophic Insurance?

These types of plans are designed by health insurance companies to capture business at the low end of the market. In many cases, customers are unable to afford the full cost of regular health care with appointments, full pharmacy coverage, clinic visits, etc. All they can afford is serious emergency care for immediate health situations such as heart attacks, car accidents, wounds and trauma, and similar events.

If a citizen of the RNA doesn't have health insurance and ends up needing medical care the RNA will pay for it (Christian thing to do) but this person or his or her family will be responsible to reimburse the people of the RNA. Free health care might be offered by Religious Groups, Civic Groups and/or Charities.

Social Security and Retirement

It is the responsibility of each citizen of the Republic of New America to save for his or her retirement. There will be no Social Security or Welfare. The citizens of the RNA do not owe you a living. All citizens will be strongly encouraged to voluntarily place at least 20% of his or her income into some type of savings/retirement account of his or her choice. Your money will grow super-fast because unlike in the U.S., in the RNA your savings will not be taxed. Retire when you can afford to do so. It is your responsibility to make sure you have enough funds saved to not run out before life runs out. If you run out of funds, then go back to work. Don't ask the government to save you using the taxpayer's hard earned money.

I realize that sometime people encounter financial troubles not of their own making. When this happens use your savings, if you have no savings, your church or family should be your next line of defense until you get back on your feet. Government should be your last resource. A Government that raises you...owns you.

Welfare

In the U.S. Welfare has increased 70% since the 1950's (the domino effect). The more people on welfare the less responsible society becomes. The reason for this is that people on welfare don't have to compete or take responsibility to survive. Individuals not on welfare have to educate themselves over and over just to stay ahead of the competition. They have to think. They have to work. They learn to save and invest. This sounds unappealing to those on welfare but these welfare people will never know self-reliance, self-pride, self-respect, responsibility, and the truth that those who know and practice these things are a blessing to themselves, their country and society.

In the U.S. it is the non-welfare people who are being taxed to death to keep welfare alive. I believe that 70% of those on U.S. welfare could work if they had to. In the RNA they will work or leave. It is not only unfair but unpatriotic to force those who work to pay for those who sit around doing nothing productive.

Because of the effects of the abusive welfare program in the U.S. there will be No welfare allowed in the Republic of New America. Everyone is expected to work. With technology there is always something one can learn to do to make a living. For the small percentage of those who may really need help (welfare) getting by, family and the church should provide for these good people. This is what being a Christian nation is all about. In a Christian nation no one should fall through the cracks. Government is not your GOD!

I thought I should stop and add some of my favorite quotes here so the readers of this book may fully understand where I am coming from.

Some quotes by Dr. Adrian Pierce Rogers

You cannot legislate the poor into freedom by legislating the industrious out of it.

You don't multiply wealth by dividing it.

Government cannot give anything to anybody that it doesn't first take from somebody else.

Whenever somebody receives something without working for it, somebody else has to work for it without receiving.

The worst thing that can happen to a nation is for half of the people to get the idea they don't have to work because somebody else will work for them, and the other half to get the idea that it does no good to work because they don't get to enjoy the fruits of their labor.

Some quotes by Prime minister Margaret Thatcher:

"Do you know that one of the great problems of our age is that we are governed by people who care more about feelings than they do about thoughts and ideas."

"I think we've been through a period where too many people have been given to understand that if they have a problem, it's the government's job to cope with it. 'I have a problem, I'll get a grant.' 'I'm homeless, the government must house me.' They're casting their problem on society. And, you know, there is no such thing as society. There are individual men and women, and there are families. And no government can do anything except through people, and people must look to themselves first. It's our duty to look after ourselves and then, also to look after our neighbor. People have got the entitlements too much in mind, without the obligations. There's no such thing as entitlement, unless someone has first met an obligation

"Being democratic is not enough, a majority cannot turn what is wrong into right. In order to be considered truly free, countries must also have a deep love of liberty and an abiding respect for the rule of law."

"Socialists are happy until they run out of other people's money."

And finally this quote by Margaret Thatcher, which is no longer true in the U.S. but was true when she quoted it in the Reagan years:

"There are significant differences between the American and European version of capitalism. The American traditionally emphasizes the need for limited government, light regulations, low taxes and maximum labor-market flexibility. Its success has been shown above all in the ability to create new jobs, in which it is consistently more successful than Europe."

Some quotes by President Ronald Reagan:

We should measure welfare's success by how many people leave welfare, not by how many are added.

Government's first duty is to protect the people, not run their lives.

Man is not free unless government is limited.

We must reject the idea that every time a law's broken, society is guilty rather than the lawbreaker. It is time to restore the American precept that each individual is accountable for his actions. The problem is not that people are taxed too little, the problem is that government spends too much.

The trouble with our Liberal friends is not that they're ignorant; it's just that they know so much that isn't so.

(end of quotes)

Here is an article I wrote some time ago that I wish to share with you. It's called Liberalism Verses Conservatism. (start of article)

Liberalism Verses Conservatism by John W. Glover (copy righted July 2000)

I love this old Chinese Proverb . "Feed a man a fish and you will have to feed him for a lifetime (welfare). Teach a man to fish and he will feed himself" (freedom).

The man that you fed the fish to is totally dependent on you because he doesn't know how to fish (dumb-ed down). Whatever the reason, you control this man. You tell him, only what you think he should know, what schools he should send his children to (you pick, because you can't afford to let this man's children get too educated. If they get too educated they won't need you anymore. Plus you want to do the right thing and make sure they get a Liberal education). Worst of all you tell him how to vote, he listens because he fears he will lose his fish supply. These are the tactics that the Liberals (Progressives) have used so well for over fifty years. This is what Lyndon B. Johnson's "Great Society" was all s' about. It and other social programs were there (at tax payer expense) to win votes. They had no other purpose. I can say this because these programs did not work, was not design to work! Billions upon Billions of tax payer dollars were spent on these

programs. Just think how much better off the U.S. would be if they used that money to teach their people how to fish (make a decent living).

Now let's talk about the man who has been taught how to fish. Not only is this man not beholding to anyone, he is free to vote as he likes, to send his children to the best schools, to live in a nice home, to live in a nice neighborhood, to drive a very nice car, he sell his excess fish for a profit so he is able to do these things. This profit could be used to start a business so that others may prosper (capitalism) and live the American Dream.

The downside to all of this wealth that he earned, through hard work, is that Liberals will want to take it from him (taxes) to buy fish (votes) for those who refuse to fish (work). Well you didn't think Liberals was going to use their own money when they can spend yours. **DID YOU!**

(end of article)

Religion

If you haven't figured this out by now here is a warning: the Republic of New America will be a Christian Nation. Unlike in the U.S. where their President has proclaimed, "We are no longer a Christian Nation," the RNA will always be a Christian Nation welcoming all people who want to better themselves and live peacefully with others.

Our laws will be based of Judo/Christian values, laws, and traditions, so why wouldn't we be a Christian Nation? I choose Christianity because of all Religions that I know of, it is the most tolerant of others. Christians accept those of other faiths, whereas

in some parts of the world if you have no faith or if your faith is not the faith favored by the population or government you are an outcast, you are discriminated against, you are placed into bondage and sometime even killed.

So now you know up front what you are getting yourself into before becoming a citizen of the Republic of New America. All are welcomed, believers and non-believers. All will be treated equally in this Christian Nation.

"Men must be governed by God or they will be ruled by tyrants."

~William Penn founder and first Governor of Pennsylvania

Abortion

If a woman is pregnant and nothing is done to stop the pregnancy won't she give birth to a child? The only answer to this question is "yes," and since "yes" is the only correct answer, then abortion is the taking of a child's life.

Over 1.3 million babies are aborted in the U.S. each year. How can a supposedly moral nation do this? How can a nation who does this be blessed by God? The Republic of New America will not be a part of this madness.

Pregnancy is not a disease like cancer. It is a condition brought on by two consenting adults (except incest or rape). The baby should not be cut out and flushed down a toilet like a piece of cancerous meat. There is no reason in these modern times (except rape) for an unwanted pregnancy. Either person could have and should have used birth control but when both are, one or more of these things: too self-centered, too lazy, too stupid, too non caring, unwanted pregnancies will happen.

Since the RNA will be a country of personal responsibility both parents will be held responsible for a proper up-bringing of this new citizen. If the child is not wanted by either parent the child will be placed for adoption to a good loving couple (man and woman). This adoption will only cost this couple the hospital bill plus legal fees (if any). No outrageous high priced adoptions allowed in the RNA. If either of the two parents want the child, the parent not wanting the child will still be responsible for 1/2 of the expense in raising the child until 18 years of age. If the man declares he is not the father, DNA will be analyzed to find the real father. Unlike in the U.S., no citizen in the RNA will be responsible for raising another person's child. No one will be paid by the government of the RNA to have children - if you can not afford children don't have unprotected sex.

Before I go further let me make this clear I am not anti-sex. I don't care if you have sex until your eye balls pop out. Just take responsibility for the outcome.

It angers me how the man gets off Scot free. He is 1/2 responsible for the pregnancy yet society holds the woman fully responsible. This is why in the U.S. there are so many moms struggling to raise their children and no dads around or even offering financial aid. My dad always said, "Never have sex with a woman you are not willing to marry." (AKA - shot gun weddings, where I come from). Here in the RNA (because everyone's DNA will be on file) we will find the man and the man will pay or do 9 months of hard labor. After all, the mother has to carry the baby for 9 months. Some men may say this is harsh punishment. Let's see how our forefathers handled this situation:

According to *A Midwife's Tale, The Life of Martha Ballard Based on Her Diary 1785-1812 by Laurel Thatcher Ulrich,* in colonial times, if a woman got pregnant and refused to identify the father she would be asked time and time again during child birth by the midwife "who is the father". Because she was under such pain and probably pissed off at the man anyway, she would eventually tell. The midwife would pass this information to the Leader who with the other men of the village would find the man and make him pay one way or the other. Times were hard for these people and no one could afford to raise another man's child. Justice was done. Seems like our forefathers were a lot smarter than we are.

I realize that a female who is pregnant and don't want to be, must be under tremendous fear and pressure. I urge any female who doesn't want her child to have the baby and let someone who can't have children adopt it. Believe me they will love that child as their own. I know a couple who has adopted two children (a boy and a girl). To them, they both are gifts from God.

I think it is a rotten shame that the male is not held at lease half responsible for the unwanted pregnancy, but the whole burden rest with the female. So girls if you must be sexually active, use birth control - just a little fatherly advice from John.

For those females out there who have had an abortion and feel guilt. Let it go! Let God know it won't happen again. Ask God to forgive you with a pure heart and your forgiveness is assured.

This section has been the hardest part of this book for me to write because I don't want to hurt the mother, but I do want justice and life for the baby. At one time in my life I was told by a female that what she did with her body was none of my business. True, what you do with your body is none of my business but the body inside your body wants to live. Please let it live.



Taxes, Property and Utilities



Taxes

The only *taxes you will pay in the Republic of New America is as follows: A Flat Tax of 5% to the Federal Government plus A Flat tax of 5% to the State Government plus A 5% Flat tax to the County Government plus A 5% Flat tax to the City/Town you live in or by. These taxes will be paid monthly to keep Government working. A yearly tax collection system forces Government to borrow money, waiting for its end of year tax payments. This monthly paid tax system eliminates interest on borrowed money, which comes out of the taxes collected, plus gives all government entities operating capital each month.

* There will be an import fee of 5%. This fee will only apply to businesses in the RNA that import goods. This fee will be paid to the Federal Government each month.

A fair tax system with no loop holes. This is the **only taxes** you will pay in the Republic of New America. This tax system cannot be changed without a 80% approval vote by the taxpayers. Here is a list of just some of the taxes you **will not pay** in the RNA that are collected in the U.S.

Property Tax, Accounts Receivable Tax, Building Permit Tax, CDL license Tax, Cigarette Tax, Soft Drink tax, Alcohol Tax, Corporate Income Tax, Court Fines (indirect taxes), Dog License Tax, Federal Unemployment Tax (FUTA), Fishing License Tax, Food License Tax, Fuel permit tax, Gasoline Tax (42 cents per gallon), Hunting License Tax, Inheritance Tax Interest expense (tax on the money), Inventory tax IRS Interest Charges (tax on top of tax), IRS Penalties (tax on top of tax), Death Tax, Liquor Tax, Luxury Taxes, Marriage License Tax, Medicare Tax, Real Estate Tax, Septic Permit Tax, Service Charge Taxes, Social Security Tax, Road Usage Taxes, Sales Taxes, Recreational Vehicle Tax, Road Toll Booth Taxes, School Tax, State Unemployment Tax (SUTA), Telephone federal excise tax, Telephone federal universal service fee tax, Telephone federal, state and local surcharge taxes, Telephone minimum usage surcharge tax, Telephone recurring and non-recurring charges tax, Telephone state and local tax, Toll Bridge Taxes, Toll Tunnel Taxes, Trailer registration tax, Utility Taxes, Vehicle Sales Tax, Watercraft registration Tax, Well Permit Tax, Workers Compensation Tax.

In the U.S. your real tax burden, if you are among the 50% who also pay income tax, is at 50% or more.

Because the tax rate in the RNA is so low compared to the U.S. all citizens must pay their taxes on all Income (money earned or live on and/or buy things with). If people cheat some or all of the above taxes paid in the U.S. will have to be collected in the RNA. So don't cheat! Those caught cheating (tax evasion) will be prosecuted as a Cat. II criminal.

What is a Flat Tax ?

A Flat Tax is a percentage of the money earned/lived on by anyone (children included). Whether this money comes from a job, *labor, business, profits, retirement account, pension, stocks, bonds, gold, silver, mutual funds, capital gains, government, gifted, etc. Bartering is the same as collecting money thus a monetary value must be placed on the bartered item and taxes paid according to this value. Each month you must track what you earn (live on) and submit your taxes of 5% to the Federal government, 5% to the State government, 5% to the County government, and 5% to the City/Town government. Four checks each month due by the 9th of

the following month. This is your responsibility. Fail to do so will be considered tax evasion.

You may ask, "Why can't my employer just submit this tax for me". It is your responsibility to pay your own taxes, not your employer. If one employer cheats and keep the money (depending on how many employees he/she has), hundreds or even thousands of tax payer's taxes will not be collected. On the other hand, if one person cheats, only taxes owed by that one person will not be collected. By paying your own taxes, you ensure your state and local governments get their fair share.

Some may suggest, "why not send the whole 20% of my taxes to the Federal Government and have them distribute it to the State, County, and Local governments"? Bad idea: Will the Federal government distribute it fairly? (They don't in the U.S.). Will they keep more than the 5% due them (probably)? It is too tempting, once the Federal Government has their hands on the money, not to use it as leverage against the States. This takes away States Rights, the very thing the Republic of New America stands for.

* The Q&A section will explain this.

Tax Deductions

There will be no tax deductions allowed in the Republic of New America. No deductions for the rich, no deductions for the poor, no deductions for anyone. Tax deductions allow government to pick winners and losers. Government gets to allow those it supports, large tax deductions for political favors. Tax deductions are what make the U.S. tax code unfair, corruptible and complicated. Some may say "John, what about tax deductions for charities and religious institutions". I say, there will be none. You should not be giving to these entities because of tax breaks. You should give from the heart, because it is the right thing to do.

Private Property Rights

The right to own property is what made the U.S. prosper. This right is slowly being taken away. In the U.S., any government (federal, state, or local) can take a person's property by simply condemning it. The U.S. Supreme Court has ruled in favor of cities who wanted people's property to give this property to developers (for kickbacks, political reasons, etc). When these people refuse to sell the city condemns the property and takes it. When this happens everything on the property belongs to the taker (home, shop, crops, etc.). The legal owner is left with nothing. This is criminal, yet the U.S. Supreme Court has ruled in favor of it.

For this to happen, all that has to be done is stack the court with people not beholding to the Constitution. In the RNA this will not happen because judges will not be picked by a political party. They will swear an oath to our Constitution and if they break that oath they will be prosecuted.

When government in the U.S. can't get what it wants through legislation, theft, or the courts they try other gimmicks such as using the EPA and the U.N. They will use the U.N. with its Agenda 21 project.

George H. Bush signed the U.S. up to support Agenda 21 in 1992 (maybe, part of his new world order). In 1993 Bill Clinton assigned executive order #12852 which gave it life. Read Agenda 21 and you will say "who could oppose this?" read it deeper and you will find out that Agenda 21 is about moving humans from their property by condemning it. Here is how it works. The U.N. will deem certain properties as wetland, wild-land, and/or the homes of endangered species.

There is a Bio Diversity Map already in use in the U.S. This map shows what lands the U.N., EPA, and the U.S. Government believes should be brought back to nature and where human settlements should be allowed. If you live in a back to nature area, your land will be deemed unsuitable under ICLEI, U.N. Agenda 21 and it's Sustainability Development Program.

You may be thinking, this doesn't affect me because I live out of these areas. Wake-up! Any area can be deemed unsuitable by the EPA or U.N. All the EPA has to do is declare your land as wetland or as an endangered species area. Do you think the U.S. Supreme Court will go to bat for you, since it leans more left every day? Dream On!

Now back to why private property rights are of utmost importance to a free people. Would you work your fingers to the bone and spend every penny you have on crops, home, shop, and equipment if you were doing all of this on another man's property or Government (communal) property? No you would not! Would any person or business make such an effort, take such a risk if the property was not theirs? If the property is not yours then profit you earn off of it is not yours. Private property owners make a Nation grow. They are the job creators. Farmers work sun up till sun down because it is their property. This is why a very few farmers can feed such a large nation. Take private property rights away and you step into Communism.

Because the Government of the Republic of New America believes that with great risk should come great rewards every citizen will have the right to own property. We believe that the pride of property ownership is good for the Republic and the freedom of its people. We believe government has No right to take what belongs to the individual. Freedom and Private Property Rights are one and the same. Never let Government take either.

In the Republic of New America you will have Private Property Rights. You will be expected not to pollute the environment. Other than this, it is your property to prosper on.

"The moment the idea is admitted into society that property is not as sacred as the law of God and that there is not a force of law and public justice to protect it, anarchy and tyranny commence. If ' Thou shalt not covet' and 'Thou shalt not steal' were not commandments from heaven, they must be made inviolable precepts in every society before it can be civilized and made free.

> ~John Adams in A Defense of the Constitution of the United States against the Attacks of M. Turgot (1787)

Utilities

Each residence will be at least 1/2 acre in size. This will be enough land for a well and mechanical septic system (require only 20 feet of lateral lines). This setup will eliminate city water and sewer service (saving the tax payers many thousands of dollars).

Electricity for each resident will be supplied by a power unit installed at least 20 feet from the home. These power units will operate off of natural gas. This can be done and they are environmentally safe. The technology to do this already exists. These will be very efficient units. Many companies will build them which will bring the price way down. No natural gas will enter the home, only electricity. This will be safer plus it will allow for enough natural gas to run all generators in the country. Also with the right converter this same natural gas could be used in your transportation vehicle, if it is CNG fuel capable. Since the RNA collects no road or gas taxes we don't care what your transportation vehicle runs on, as long as pollution standards are met.

Just think of it, no overhead power lines (subject to storms and terrorism) no area outages, no blackouts. Everyone has his/her own power. All natural gas lines will be underground. Communication cable (cable tv, internet, phone service, etc.) could be buried with the natural gas lines. TV viewing could also be over the air digital service, so could internet and telephone (WIFI). Cell service will also be available.

Here is more good news; the technology is very close to being available to turn your well water efficiently into hydrogen gas. Hydrogen gas is very close to natural gas thus your home power unit will run off of it with some modifications. Wow, almost free electricity. Until this happens you will have to pay for the natural gas you use but you can cut the cost by using energy star appliances (your power unit will work less hard, using less natural gas). As an emergency backup, if the natural gas lines should go down, you could use a propane bottle (gas grill type or larger). This would have to be properly jetted. but would work until Natural gas is restored.

Businesses, apartments, and office building will use the same type of power units as residents (Just scaled up as needed). Those who wish to, can use solar or wind energy (at their expense).



Capitalism



U.S. Liberals (Progressives) would have you believe that Capitalism is evil. (They have taught this to the children of the U.S. for centuries). That Capitalism is the cause of all of the U.S.'s problems. That Capitalism was the cause of bank failures, housing failures, or any other failure the U.S. may have or will face. Their comrades in the media have been only too happy to help them tell this lie.

The facts are, Liberalism has brought the U.S. to its knees. The U.S. has liberalized its banks, Fannie and Freddie, Wall Street, and most of its colleges and universities (where their CEO's come from).

YES, Liberalism has failed the U.S. BIG TIME. Where was the Government oversight over the banks, wall street, Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. With Democrat's like Senator Chris Dodd and Barney Frank in charge of oversight, there was NONE because these two liberals and many more were too busy accepting HUGE campaign contributions and sweetheart deals from the very entities they were assigned to oversee.

The whole financial mess the U.S. is in now was caused by liberals. They have liberalized lending, they have liberalized spending. Liberalism not Capitalism is the enemy of the people.

Liberals in the present U.S. administration have created "Crony Capitalism" and pretend it is real Capitalism. No it is not! Real Capitalism is not about Government picking winners and losers. Real Capitalism is about Government getting out of the way of job creators. Real Capitalism is not about kick-backs to a political party. For all of you that have been brain washed into believing Capitalism is evil, just look around. Get your head out of your ass. Real Capitalism has given you the highest standard of living in the world. Look at your home, appliances, tv's, cell phones, I-pads, computers, cars, trucks, vans, boats, roads, cable tv, hospitals, buildings, clothes, food, sport arenas, clubs, airports, and so so many other things. Capitalism has lifted more people out of poverty in the U.S. than all of the Progressive, Socialist, Marxist regimes around the world combined could ever do. If the U.S. continues down this Progressive road Real Capitalism will die there. The Republic of New America is Proud to call itself a Capitalist Country where Real Capitalism will be practiced every day.

Progressives are now in the process of liberalizing the U.S. Military with political correctness. What a shame. When soldiers at Ft. Hood are gunned down by a Muslim extremist the U.S. Government said it was only work place violence. If this is not taking liberal political correctness to the max then what is it? A liberalized military cannot defeat terrorist.

Capitalism has given the U.S. abundance (for now). Liberalism will give the U.S. Cuba! (soon)

What is Crony Capitalism? Crony capitalism is a term describing an economy in which success in business depends on close relationships between business people and government officials. It may be exhibited by favoritism in the distribution of legal permits, government grants, special tax breaks or other forms of graft. Crony capitalism arises when political crony-ism spills over into the business world. Self-serving friendships, family and political ties between businessmen and the government influence the economy and society to the extent that it corrupts public service, economic and political ideals.



Business and Industry



All legitimate businesses will be welcomed in the Republic of New America. There will be no *taxes on businesses.

Businesses in the RNA will hire only citizens of the RNA and pay them a very good wage. They can afford to do this because they will not be taxed or **unionized. Citizens of the RNA will be encouraged to buy from these businesses. This makes a win win for both. These businesses will be getting a very educated and motivated work force because our citizens have pledged to live by our creed and our schools will be second to none. Businesses in the RNA will be held responsible if damage is done to the environment.

* There will be an import fee of 5%. This fee will only apply to businesses in the RNA that import goods. This fee will be paid to the Federal Government each month.

** There will be no need for unions, though they are not outlawed. The State government, where the business is located, will represent the employees if a dispute should arise. The employee will also have a right to a court hearing if need be, plus the employee can elevate the case to the Federal Court if necessary.



The Environment



Both the people and companies located in the RNA will at all times care for the environment. We will use common sense, not environmental wacko junk science. We all want clean air, water and soil.

Sanitation

To keep our land clean, the government of the RNA will offer free trash pickup and disposal. This will be done by Federal Government oversight. The Federal Government will contract this out or use prison trustees to gather this trash. The program will be known as TPR (Trash Pickup and Recycling). I am not big on the Federal Government doing anything that I feel the local government could do as well or better. In this case it makes more since to have only one branch of government perform this task because it will make recycling easier.

With free trash pick-up and disposal there will be no excuse by any citizen to trash or pollute their property or public property. It is free, so be responsible!

The Government of the RNA will recycle usable trash to pay for TPR. Here is how it will work: Plastic, metal, clean paper and cardboard will be placed in a heavy duty black trash bag. Table scraps, diapers, contaminated paper, other waste, etc. should be placed in a heavy duty white trash bag. Scrap wood, limbs, etc. will be piled in the same area as the bags. This is a small price to pay for free trash pick-up and a more beautiful Nation.

Global Warming

Now let's talk about Global Warming (AKA climate change). It's strange how the Progressives now refer to global warming as climate change. This started when emails were discovered some years ago that proved the book on global warming had been cooked. In other words, they lied. The word climate change is so broad it could mean anything the weather does. How silly and yet the citizens of the U.S. are buying it. Real climate change has been around since God created the earth. It's called: Winter, Spring, Summer, and Fall.

Why do the Progressives insist global warming exist?

1. It gives them power and votes. 2. It sucks tax money from the people into their buddy's pockets in the form of green projects, phony jobs, and grants.

It is about power and money not about saving the planet. To prove this - read on...

Al Gore has made millions of dollars trading in carbon credits (something made up of thin air). Every business gets so many carbon credits assigned to them by government (Al's buddies). Now let's say company <u>A</u> makes clothing. Since this company doesn't pollute much, this company has excess credits. Now Al takes these credits and sell them to Company <u>B</u> who makes gasoline and has ran out of the credits government sold them. Since company <u>B</u> is evil (in Al's eyes) they should be punished. To punish them they are forced to buy the carbon credits company <u>A</u> did not use and Al's keeps most of the money. What a Ponzi scheme. Al takes something that doesn't belong to him, and makes a fortune off of it. People have gone to jail for crimes much much less than this. All of this baloney does nothing for the environment. Company <u>B</u> is still polluting, what you pay for gas goes up because company <u>B</u> has to recoup the millions of dollars they paid to Al. If you live in the U.S. and fall for this junk you better hold your breath because the next thing Al and your government will be charging you for is the air you breathe. After all, Al invented it when he invented the internet

Let me tell you a true story about global warming (funny...when I was a kid they told us we were going to freeze to death). In the 14th Century all of a sudden the earth started warming. It got so warm grapes could be grown in Northern Germany, where they never grew before. People started migrating north. They grew plants, they built huts, and they had livestock. Times were good, very good for many years. Then WHAM! Mother earth said, "Enough of this, I am going to take things back to normal," so she hit the area with a gigantic freeze. Crops died, animals died, people starved and froze.

This happened in the 14th Century when there was no industries to make carbon, to harm the Ozone layer, so don't be fooled by global warming or cooling. Don't be fooled by all of the Scientist that preach this because money in the form of grants is what they are after and if they don't suck up to Progressives they will not get a penny. Most meteorologists don't agree with these scientists anyway. Remember, the global warming crowd has lied to you before (we have the emails to prove it) so don't trust them.

Because the RNA thinks it is criminal to sell carbon credits, companies in the RNA will not be selling or buying this snake oil.



Media



The U.S., so called Main Stream Media, in my opinion is now so corrupt that no one can oppose a candidate they support and defeat that person. The candidate they support will never be challenged by them and will receive millions of dollars in positive press for free. The opponent will be vilified with tons of lies (Liberals Lie).

This left leaning group make up 70% of the news media in the U.S. and are trusted by 55% of a zombie population, though some smarter ones are now catching on to their lies. They have been able to pick who will be president by shaping the minds of this group of zombies with lies.

Zombies: These are voters who will not do their own homework. They believe what they are told and follow blindly. They are too much into cell phones, video games, partying, pop culture, etc. to care about their country.

I don't care one iota about this so called Main Stream Media but I do care about the lies they tell. I care about how they can destroy the character of a good man or woman they don't agree with by spreading the most vicious lies and getting away with this, time and time again, without suffering any consequences at all. In the U.S. they are never held libel for intentionally destroying the life of someone they disagree with politically.

I don't want this to happen in the RNA. I want a fair, free, truthful, unbiased media, so in the RNA all media outlets will be held accountable for what is said. The media here in the RNA can be sued for slander and lies by both public and private citizens and groups.. Tell the truth or get sued! "One of the common failings among honorable people is a failure to appreciate how thoroughly dishonorable some other people can be, and how dangerous it is to trust them".

~Thomas Sowell

I want a media and press like Ben Franklin believed in:

Franklin's success with the Pennsylvania Gazette can be attributed in great part to Franklin's desire to examine more than one side of an issue and to publish different points of view. Franklin is one of the first American publishers to understand that freedom of the press and tolerance are part of what it is to be a newspaper editor.



Education



Education

Public education works best when all control is at the local level (state, county and town/city). Because this is true there will be no Federal control of education in the RNA unlike in the U.S. where the NEA, the teachers Unions places demands on schools through the Department of Education to push their left leaning liberal agendas. Schools that do not go along usually loose Federal funding.

There will be no teacher *union interference in what is taught. What is taught will be decided by the state/local governments, the school board, the parents and teachers. (PTA).

*There will be no need for unions. The State government, where the school is located, will represent the teacher if a dispute should arise. The teacher will also have a right to a court hearing if need be, plus the teacher can elevate the case to the Federal Government if necessary. If teachers wish to form a union, it's their right to do so.

Here in the Republic of New America we want our children to be Educated Not Indoctrinated.

All types of schools are welcomed in the RNA: Public (funded by the state, county and city), home school (funded by the parent), private (you pay) or religious (you or the church pay).

Higher education (Collages, Universities, and Vocational Technical) can be public, private, or religious ran without interference from the Federal Government.

Let's start by talking about Vocational/Technical education. I feel this form of education is neglected and sometime look down upon by the government of the U.S. Leaders there say everyone should get a college education. It's about money and power. They know a mechanic, factory worker, etc. doesn't need an education that places the student and parents in financial debt for a lifetime. An education that doesn't teach the skills needed by these workers, but what it does teach (in most cases) is liberalism because most of the professors are liberals who will shape young minds into their own image.

Vocational education is a must and will be encouraged in the RNA. The students graduating from these vo-techs will repair and build our cars, airplanes, houses, roads, etc. In other words "they build a nation". Some of these students will become care givers, nurses, cooks, chefs, accounts, bookkeepers, truck drivers, electricians, etc.

Colleges and Universities are also a must. This is where most of our leaders will come from. The problem with most colleges and universities in the U.S. is that they spend more time indoctrinating the student instead of educating them. This is because most professors are liberals. Many of these liberal professors are so far left that they teach and preach how Socialism/Marxism is superior to Capitalism (I'm not talking about crony government capitalism) and how this should be the path these students (the future leaders) should take the U.S. down. Students that believe this crap are idiots. They should stop and think "here is a professor making a large 6 figure income under Capitalism yet he/she tells me Socialism is better". I wonder how much he/she would make in Socialist Cuba". Students/Parents wise-up. If you are attending a Collage or University with a professor who is indoctrinating instead of educating LEAVE find a better place where there is real education.

In the RNA our teachers will be very well paid. With good pay should come good results so there will be testing (Done by the State) to ensure that teachers are teaching and students are learning

according to State standards. These State standards will also apply to private, religious and home schooled students.

I cannot give you more detail in regard to the education system of the RNA because this will be decided locally by the people of each State. I do wish for a very high standard of education so that the people of the RNA will be the best educated people in the world. I believe, to achieve this, all of this liberal bull, such as political correctness (a system to control speech, designed to shut up those that liberals don't agree with) must go. I believe teachers should have equal rights to a teaching job and that this should be decided on merit, not politics. I believe teachers should educate not indoctrinate (to the left or right). No parent wants their child brain washed. In the public schools (grades 1-12) I would like to see a 11 month school year. One month is plenty of vacation time when combined with holidays. In the U.S. where there is only a 9 month school year. Students are falling far behind the rest of the industrialized world and I don't wish for this to happen in the RNA. Another reason students in the U.S. are falling behind is the lack of discipline in their schools. Students are beating up teachers. How can a teacher that fears for his or her life teach? How can the other students learn? Why have they let bullies take over their schools? This will not be tolerated in the RNA. These bullies will be sent to a Reform School.

Questions & Answers

This book has been proofed read by my loving family, friends and pundits. They had many questions so I thought I would answer them in a question and answer format instead of trying to include their questions and my answers into the text of the book.

Q= In your section on Taxes, where you explains Flat Taxes, you said the tax is on income or the money you live on. I don't understand why you say "the money you live on"? What does this mean?

A= Some people own their own business and could say "I don't have a salary so I owe no taxes" or "I lost money this year thus I owe no taxes," when in fact this person lived on something. He or she bought groceries, paid rent or mortgage, car payments, utility bills, etc. To keep this person from not paying his or her fair share of taxes I added the "money you lived on" to the tax code. Everyone lives on something paid for with money (or other precious goods) so everyone has to figure out how much he or she spent each month to live on and pay his or her taxes. EVERY ONE! Q= You say there will be no taxes on businesses. Does this mean CEO's will not have to pay taxes.

A= Everyone who has a income has to pay taxes. This income could be money or anything of value (stocks, bonds, gold, etc.) rendered for services or they have to pay taxes on the money they live on. The businesses (company, store, corporation, etc.) in the RNA will not be taxes for the privilege of doing business in the RNA as is done in the U.S. The CEO will definitely have to pay his/her 20% just as everyone else.

Q= Why aren't CAT I criminals incarcerated? You only talk about fines or community service for these folks.

A= Unlike in the U.S. I prefer not to lock these people up unless absolutely necessary. If I do, they will probably lose their job because they will miss work while incarcerated. It would cost the tax payers more (housing and food) plus be a large burden on law enforcement because some small towns might not have a jail (guarding and transporting them). These citizens function better when they keep their jobs and stay at home. No one should lose a job for a misdemeanor unless they force it upon themselves. I give them a choice, pay a fine or work or go to a CAT II prison.

Q= You say nothing about Political Parties in your section titled, Government.

A= I feel they could become evil, because the party in control will eventually see it's self as being more important than the Nation. Once a political party gets complete control they will rule like dictators, the National Socialist German Worker's Party (aka the Nazi Party) is a good example of this. Our founding father never wanted political parties. He knew things would come unraveled if one party got complete control. This may happen in the U.S.

As a free nation, political parties are allowed in the RNA but I hope the people are smart enough to be leary of them and avoid voting for any candidate belonging to a political party. Since all voting in the RNA starts locally it will be hard for any political party to have much power.

Here is what President George Washington said about political parties:

"However [political parties] may now and then answer popular ends, they are likely in the course of time and things, to become potent engines, by which cunning, ambitious, and unprincipled men will be enabled to subvert the power of the people and to usurp for themselves the reins of government, destroying after wards the very engines which have lifted them to unjust dominion."

> ~GEORGE WASHINGTON, Farewell Address, September 17, 1796

Q= Why don't you like Unions?

A= For the same reasons I don't like political parties. Once a union gets complete control of a company the union bosses will dictate how the company should be ran. They put the union before the workers and the company the workers are working for, soon, very soon the workers are not working at all. I realize there is some good unions. I realize that at one time the U.S. workers were treated terribly and unions saved many of them. I feel I have

protected the worker adequately in this Right To Work Nation (RNA). However if someone wants to unionize there is no one stopping them.

Q= Who will run the CAT II and CAT III prisons.

A= They will be ran by the Federal Government. I can hear it now "But John, I thought you believed in State Rights?" I do! The State will have the right to decide who is a CAT II or CAT III criminal and how much time this person should serve, and then the Federal Government will deal out the Justice. I would like to see this contracted out to keep the federal work force as small as possible.

There will be one prison built in each State by the Federal Government and ran by the Federal Government. The reason for handling crime this way is that for every State, to have to pay for a prison would financially burden that State (less services for its law abiding citizens). Cities will still need jails to hold those awaiting trial or being held for misdemeanor but a large burden will be lifted off of the backs of its citizens. Yet another reason for this is that it simplifies recycling since the Federal Government will be handling recycling (remember the black trash bags) with prison labor. And still another reason is the fact that the Federal Government will be more financially able to do this because of the 5% Import fee, it will collect.

Q= What kind of work will prisoners in a CAT II and a CAT III prison do.

A= They will do everything that is needed to keep the prison running. (cook, clean, laundry, grow food, canning, raise livestock,

build thing to sell, etc.). One of their primary duties will be trash recycling (remember the white and black trash bags). They will separate the white and black trash bags. They will then separate what is in the black bags by category (steel/tin cans, paper/cardboard, aluminum, Styrofoam/plastics) and place each into its dumpster. The white bags will be incinerated in a flash furnace (waste to energy furnace) (environmentally friendly). The heat produced will be used to make steam, to turn a turbine generator, which will produce electricity for the prison. We will not be burying our trash into the soil (landfills).

Q= You never say what will happen to Juveniles who commit crimes in the RNA?

A= They will be housed in the Federal Prison in the State they committed the crime in. The prison will have a section just for them (secured from the adults). Max age for a juvenile will be 17 years. If time still remains on the sentence when 18 years of age is reached this person will be moved to the adult section of the prison. Movement may be needed at a younger or older age, if the warden deems this necessary. This juvenile section of the prison will be ran as a Reform School. Here young offenders can get a second chance to fit in to society.

Reform School: Correctional institution for the treatment, training, and social rehabilitation of young offenders.

Q= Why do you insist on the States being so powerful?

A= I believe in State Rights just as our founding fathers. They knew that a centralized government usually ends in the loss of individual rights. Also, isn't it easier to get to your State Capital than to your Federal Capital? The people at your State Capital will be more likely to listen to you because you have more of an effect on his/her salary? With each State trying to be better (I Hope) than the other States you have competition between them. Competition makes a win win for the government and the people. The State that treats its people the best will have the most people thus the most tax revenue.

Q= You keep mentioning Polluting. You even tell private property owners what to do in regard to Polluting. In my view this is somewhat dictatorial.

A= I believe what I ask for regarding the environment, from the people of the RNA is a fair price to pay for the low taxes and other freedoms offered by the RNA. When just one person pollutes our air, water, or soil it affects all of us. Example: The air we breathe is shared by all of the citizens. One person (company, etc.) should not be and will not be allowed to affect the quality of life of others.

Q= In your section on utilities you never addressed street lights and traffic lights. Without power lines how will these be powered?

A= There is two ways this can be done. An underground electrical wire can be ran from the business/resident closes to the lights (with the owner's permission) to power conventional street lights and traffic lights. The City could reimburse the owner for the electricity. The second way is to put up lights that are powered from solar panels. You would still need poles but no overhead wires. The home owners could also power their yard/street lights using one of these methods.

Q= Why is there no Property tax? I don't think you are collecting enough taxes and a Property tax will bring in a lot of money.

A= Yes it would. I feel this and the death taxes are the most unfair taxes of all. A Property tax is so unfair because when government wants more money they always go after increasing Property taxes. Once placed on the ballot every property owner (the few) will vote against it and every non property owner (the many) will vote for it. The many wins every time because they don't care how much these taxes go up, because they have no skin in the game, but it's no game, because these taxes continue to rise until the property owner loses everything. Property tax like the Death tax is wealth distribution (Communistic). Both are unjust and criminal and I will not allow criminal activity to exist in the RNA.

"Government is instituted to protect property of every sort This being the end of government, that is NOT a just government,.... nor is property secure under it, where the property which a man has ... is violated by arbitrary seizures of one class of citizens for the service of the rest."

~James Madison

Q= Why aren't Leaders in the RNA not picked by an Electoral College System, like in the U.S.? The people don't have a direct vote in choosing their leaders in your system of Government.

A= It's a Representative Republic where the citizens elect the people that they feel are the most qualified to represent them. It is 1000 times more fair than a system where one candidate can get only one more vote than his/her opponent, yet get every Electoral Vote the State has - 49.99 % of the voters in that State, lost their vote. What a sham! Then the person casting the Electoral vote on behalf of this State can still vote as he or she pleases. Another Sham! My system doesn't require billions upon billions of dollars in campaigning, where the candidate who tells the most lies wins. My system does not divide a Nation. My system isn't prone to rigged elections or news media propaganda.

Q= You never mention unemployment benefits.

A= Because there isn't any. If you lose your job, go get another one. This may sound heartless but this country is set up so there will be too many employers wanting employees, thus competition for employees which equals jobs with better pay. You should have money saved back to get you by until you find a job (20% savings encouraged and they are tax free). Some insurance companies offer policies that pay when you are out of work but you have to purchase these when working.

Your family and friends or church could help you between jobs. (never burn bridges).

Q= You said the Constitution for the RNA will be written by the House of State Representatives from the original U.S. Constitution, and the Declaration of Independence. Will all Amendments be kept? If not, which ones will go?

A= Since I will not be writing it (I will leave this to smarter men and women than me) I can only tell you what I would like to see. I want our constitution to come from the best parts of each document. I want special attention paid to the Bill of Rights (the first ten amendments of the Constitution). The first, second and fourth Amendments are absolute keepers. Some of the others will need their wording changes to apply to the RNA. There are many Amendments I want gone, for instance: The 17th (we will have no Senators) the 20th (election of a president) the 22nd (terms of presidents) the 23rd (Electors, not needed) the 24th (right to vote for president, etc.) We have no president only Leaders, the 25th (Removal of the president from office. This does not apply). There are more of them but I think you get the point.

The Constitution of the RNA will include this very important part of the Declaration of Independence: "We hold these truths to be self-evident that all men (women) are created equal, that they are endowed by their Creator with certain unalienable Rights, that among these are Life, Liberty and the pursuit of Happiness." If these words were in the U.S. Constitution and if they were believed and lived, then just maybe, there would have been no Slavery, no Hate, and no Discrimination. Read it again, see the first part it says (self-evident that all men and women are created equally). With this added to the Constitution of the RNA no equal rights amendment will be needed.

Q= What will happen to the mental impaired? How will they be treated?

A= This may sound cruel but the ones who are criminally insane will not be accepted as citizens. To accept these folks will put a real big burden on a new country. The first thing that would happen is that other countries would dump their criminally insane on us; we would be inheriting another countries problem. This is what happened in the U.S. when President Carter told Castro he would accept his political prisoners. Instead of political prisoners Castro dumped his mentally criminally insane on the U.S. Now to answer your question: If a citizen of the RNA is mentally and/or physically impaired with no danger to society they will be treated as other citizens. They could attend special classes in schools just for them. They could live with their families. Special training will be available to them. Special Olympics will be available for them to participate in. These are special people. I have seen the unique skills they possess in action.

Now for citizens of the RNA who are mentally challenged but turn criminally insane (for whatever reason) these folks will be housed in either the CAT II or CAT III section of the prison depending on the crime they are convicted of. There will be a special section of the prison (secured from the rest) for these folks. Those in a CAT II prison who can be rehabilitated will be released under supervision back into society, once their term is served. Those in a CAT III prison will never be released back on the people. In the U.S., because of bleeding heart liberals and the ACLU suing those wanting to keep these people locked-up, they are set free to do as they please. I remember a time when the criminal insane was incarcerated for life in the U.S. and the people were safe from this evil. For you Progressives who doubt it, EVIL does EXIST!

Q= What if one of the States go rogue and starts governing against the wishes of its people?

A= I would hope the people of this State would be so involved in their government (not get lazy) to never let it get this far. If this did happen the 5 Federal leaders with the House of Representatives would have to decide on a plan of action (majority rule) to stop this. What action they take will depend on the situation. Q= How will you finance the RNA? Will you use U.S. dollars.

A= I hope good people around the world (after reading this book) who want true freedom and liberty for themselves, their family, their children and their grandchildren would contribute money. No favors would be given for this money.

We will gladly accept contributions from citizens of any country. These funds will be used to buy *gold. This *gold will be stored in RNA's Capital City (Liberty City) in a very highly secured vault. We will print money according to the *gold on hand. Yes our money, unlike most money around the world, will be backed by *gold. We will not be printing money out of thin air as is done in the U.S. This practice will eventually make the dollar there worthless.

There will be no coins minted, just the printing of paper money (coins are too expensive to mint). The money will be called Liberty Dollars. They will be printed in 1/4, 1/2, 1, 5, 10, 20, 100, and 1000 dollar denominations (a different color for each denomination).

Some of the money that comes into the RNA will also be used for the purchase of Land (our country), Infer-structure (Interstates, roads and bridges, and other structures needed to build a country). Private Citizens and industry will build the rest, at no cost to the citizens of the RNA.

Every dollar that comes in, for the creation of the Republic of New America, will be accounted for. (I need some very honest bookkeepers). Note: Don't send money until instructed to do so.

*Gold or precious metals or stones.

Q= I see you said that there will be no taxes on hunting or fishing licenses. Does this mean that no licenses will be needed to hunt or fish in the RNA?

A= Only on private property (this is up to the property owner). The RNA is a States Rights Nation so the State will decide if a license to hunt or fish (or whatever) will be needed on State Property and that State may or may not require a fee for this. The no federal taxes on these licenses stand.

It is up to the people, through their Statesmen, to decide how they want their State ran (not mob rule). Personally I am somewhat a libertarian on what's allowed under the law. But I am very much in favor of personal responsibility. Here is an example: You use a mind altering substance (legal or illegal) and hurt or kill someone who was not trying to harm you...THEIR DEATH IS YOUR FAULT!. Don't blame the substance, society, the devil or God. You are totally responsible for your actions.

If the substance was also illegal in your State, then you have another problem on top of the one you already have. Stay out of trouble by being responsible. (Well, I got off of the subject again)

Q= Why are finger prints and DNA required for Citizenship? This bothers me.

A: I thought long and hard on this but finally decided that if everyone in the country was finger printed and a DNA profile was done, citizens with hate in their heart might think twice before committing a crime. Crimes could be solved easier, whereas in the U.S., too many crimes go unsolved because the criminal's DNA or finger prints are not on file. Also DNA could be used to head off some diseases thus saving lives. I want no one to be wrongly accused of murder so I believe that the more evidence available the less likely this will happen. DNA could just as easily prove innocent, as it can prove guilt.

Protecting DNA and finger prints will be the responsibility of the Federal Government with States oversight. This has to be done in a very secure building at the National Capital. The Forensic experts that work in this building have to be trustworthy and very well trained. No DNA will ever be allowed to leave this building. When a crime (murder, etc.) is committed DNA samples, Finger prints, or any other evident the State wishes examined will be sent to the Federal DNA Lab. Results will be sent back to the State. In a murder trial the defendant has the right to always have a independent lab (second opinion) do a DNA work-up. The government will not pay for this work-up.

Q= I see that you approve of the death penalty for hideous crimes. Don't you know that the death penalty doesn't deter crime?

A= Yes it does! The person put to death for a hideous crime will never kill again, and again, and again. The death penalty stops repeat offenders which accounts for over 60% of crimes in the U.S. You can't fix evil, only eliminate it.

Q= I own a grocery store. If I live on the food in my store won't this be one item I will not have to pay taxes on?

A= You bought the food for resale but now you are using it for your own existence. This makes it "money you are living on" because you paid money for the food. Technically this should be included in your monthly taxes. By not including it you will probably never get caught. A Representative Republic can only exist when its citizens are moral and honest.

Tax in the RNA is low. The tax system relies on honesty. It's not worth a charge of tax evasion and years of hard labor in a CAT II prison if convicted.

Q= I don't like the way you handle health care. Some people really cannot afford health care Why not have something similar to Obama Care (the Affordable Health Care Act) ?

A= I tell you, Obama Care will destroy health care in the U.S. It is UN-affordable plus it was never about health care anyway, only about control (to force the U.S. Into single payer health care). The fact that no Republicans (even the liberal ones) voted for it should be enough proof. Not convinced! Here is more proof. There are over 2000 pages to hide its real agenda and over 41 new taxes hidden in those pages. There are over 16,000 new regulations hidden in those pages. The cost is over one Trillion Dollars per year and still climbing. I could give you even more proof that this is about Government (democrat) control of your health thus your life but I will not because if you aren't convinced by now then you are a Zombie and beyond my ability to help you.

It would have been less expensive (way less expensive) to give each family needing health care in the U.S. a \$5000 voucher and let them buy (with tax payers money) their own health care from a list of approved providers. The reason this wasn't done is no 2000 pages, no hidden taxes, no hidden regulations, no trillion dollars spent, less Government control. Q= You say the RNA is a Christian Nation, yet you let all in, why?

A= I am sure there is a lot of good people who aren't Christian, that yearn for freedom from excessive oppressive government. I believe these people would make good citizens. Who knows, by example (not coercion) they might (their decision) also make good Christians. Where Religion is concerned you first have to change a person's heart before you can change that person's mind.

Q= I like your idea about each resident having 1/2 acre and their own electric power unit, water well, and septic system but how will the home owner pay for all of this.

A= They could finance these things with the purchase of the home. To keep the cost down a less expensive home could be built. I for one don't care how much home someone has as long as they can pay for it (not the tax payers). Face it - many homes in the U.S. are over built. For instance the roof systems on these homes are so large, with so much wood used that another house could be framed from the wood saved if a truss roof system was used. I know of a way to build a home using papercrete (a mixture of paper and cement) for around fifty thousand dollars that would be equivalent to a one hundred thousand dollar home in the U.S. This type of home built on a concrete slap will use a 6 inch outer wall. A trussed roof system (the strongest and least expensive) covered with metal. The outside walls are stucco. I would like to see alternative homes built in the RNA. This is not allowed in most places in the U.S. I want innovation for my country. However each State will be required to have a building code, one open to new ideas with logical engineering standards. Without a building code you end up with slums.

Q= How long will the electric power units you speak of work?

A= Similar units that run on diesel (costly and dirty) runs 24 hours per day for 10 years with only oil and filter changes. Such a unit running on Natural Gas will run quieter, cooler, cleaner, and longer without expensive filters needed. The technology to do this exists now but powerful forces in the U.S. don't want this done.

Q= Who will pay the salary of the State Representatives (SR's)?

A= They will be paid by the State they represent. I do not want Representative's salary paid by the Federal Government because I don't want the Federal Government having leverage over them and I definitely don't want them deciding their own salaries, benefits, and pay increases as is done in the U.S.

While we are on the subject of pay I believe the Statesmen should be paid by the county that elected him or her.

Q= I looked up Progressives on the internet and can't find much wrong with how they Governed when they came to power in the early 20^{th} century.

A= If you look in the right places (places that haven't been white washed) you will find that Progressive Leaders were antiindividual rights, anti-property rights, anti-Constitution, anti-States rights but pro big government control. They also gave us the Federal Reserve because they knew if they could control the money they could control the people. Woodrow Wilson once said "Give me control of the people's money and I will control the people". They have tried with great success to belittle the founding fathers time and time again. They are elitist who believe they know what is best (to hell with the Constitution). These leaders will do anything to stay in power!

"One of the common failings among honorable people is a failure to appreciate how thoroughly dishonorable some other people can be, and how dangerous it is to trust them".

~Thomas Sowell

Q= The Creed of the RNA or at least some of it comes from a Liberal. How can you use it as the creed for a Conservative country?

A= Yes, parts of the Creed was written by Dean Alfange who was a 1920's Liberal. At least that is what is said on the internet about him. After reading some of his writings, he sounds more Libertarian than Liberal. Modern day Liberals would never have written such a creed. It is totally opposite of what most Liberals, Progressives, Socialist and Marxist believe.

According to Wikipedia, the Honorable Dean Alfange was an American statesman born December 2, 1899, in Constantinople (now Istanbul Turkey). He was raised in upstate New York. He served in the U.S. Army during World War I and attended Hamilton College, graduating in the class of 1922.

Q= You call the Government a Federal Government why not call it a National Government like it is often called in the U.S.?

A= You find liberals and the like calling the U.S. Government a National Government, this is in opposition to the U.S. Constitution, just as they call the U.S. a Democracy, when it is actually a Republic. It's an effort to make the Constitution less relevant. For the most part it has worked because the difference is not taught in U.S. schools.

Nationalism: is the National government knows best and should supersede the states laws and regulations.

Federalism: is the Federal government has their set of responsibilities and rights, but the States should have their own sovereignty to define their own laws for those things not addressed by the Constitution specifically.

Q= Will the Federal Government run the mail system?

A= I would rather see this done by a private company such as FedEx, UPS, etc. For the Federal Government to get involved in this would tax a new Nation to the max. What happens with mail and package delivery will be up to the people.

Q= How do you feel about the citizens owning guns?

A= I am pro Second Amendment, thus I am for law abiding sane citizens owning guns. I do believe that for a citizen to carry a gun in public (conceal or open carry) some type of training and a permit should be required. I hope the NRA (National Rifle Association) would be very active in the RNA. They have some of the best gun safety classes on the planet. It all boils down to Safety and Personal Responsibility. With freedom comes responsibility.

"Weapons are the tools of power. In the hands of the state, they can be the tools of decency or the tools of

oppression, depending on the righteousness of that state. In the hands of criminals, they are the tools of evil. In the hands of the free and decent citizen, they should be the tools of liberty. Weapons compound man's power to achieve whatever purpose he may have. They amplify the capabilities of both the good man and the bad man, and to exactly the same degree, having no will of their own. Thus, we must regard them as servants, not masters and good servants of good men. Without them, man is diminished, and his opportunities to fulfill his destiny are lessened. An unarmed man can only flee from evil, and evil is not overcome by fleeing from it."

~ Col. Jeff Cooper

Q= Will there be an IRS or Federal Reserve in the RNA.

A= No need for either. Since there will be no tax deductions allowed and since there will be no payroll withholdings I see no need for an IRS. Just think of it, no harassment of some, no rewards to others. WOW a fair tax system plus millions of dollars saved by the taxpayers. However some State agency might be needed to keep tax cheats in-line. As far as the Federal Reserve (private bank) is concerned I don't know what they do for the U.S. anyway, except manipulate the money supply to favor some and punish others. Why would we want this?

"If the American people ever allow private banks to control the issue of their currency, first by inflation, then by deflation, the banks and corporations that will grow up around them will deprive the people of all property until their children wake up homeless on the continent their Fathers conquered...I believe that banking institutions are more dangerous to our liberties than standing armies... The issuing power should be taken from the banks and restored to the people, to whom it properly belongs."

> ~Thomas Jefferson in The Debate Over the Recharter of the Bank Bill (1809)

Q= Under Health care you mentioned competition between pharmaceutical. How would you get these companies to compete?

A= In the U.S. Pharmaceutical companies are granted 20 year patents on medicines they create. This is too long of a time without competition. Because there is no competition these medicines are priced outrageously. For insistence a pill costing these companies only 20 cents to make can sell for \$400. This is one reason why Health care in the U.S. cost so much. I believe in free enterprise but also believe in competition. I don't believe in government protecting a company thus eliminating that company from having to compete. Therefore I would like to see only a 5 year patents allowed in the RNA. This would allow other pharmaceutical companies to bring these medicines to the market much sooner and at a much lower cost.

Q= Where do you think the RNA will be located.

A= Only God Knows!

Q= From reading your book I think you don't like Democrats. Are you a Republican?

A= I usually vote Republican "you know the lesser of two evils thing" What I don't like is Progressives because of their policies and both parties have Progressives in them. If I had to put a number to it I believe the Democrat party is 90% Progressive and the Republican Party is 60% Progressive.

The Liberal Progressives have done great damage to the U.S. and its Constitution. If not voted out of office they will continue to march the U.S. towards socialism or worse.

"One of the common failings among honorable people is a failure to appreciate how thoroughly dishonorable some other people can be, and how dangerous it is to trust them".

~Thomas Sowell

Q= You said that you think each person of the RNA should save for their own retirement. This sounds good but unfortunately I don't think most people are responsible enough to do this and when they are too old or sick they will need government handouts or die.

A= If the Federal Government started handouts to its citizens, who will not save for the future, other citizens seeing this will also not save for the future. Soon, most citizens will stop saving, thinking the government will take care of them. No one should die, but it's not the business of the Federal Government to pick winners and losers. Let churches, charities, civic groups and caring citizens do this. When the Federal Government gets involved with handouts, bad habits are encouraged (laziness, waste, fraud, corruption, etc.).

Q= Why are you so opposed to what you call Welfare? Some people just need help and it seems cruel not to give it to them.

A= Because once started it just can't be stopped. Politicians who wish to get elected time and time again will make sure it grows like a cancer by getting as many people on it (whether they need it or not) as they can. Look what has happened in Greece, Spain and Other countries when Government could not afford welfare anymore (riots, arson, theft, and murder).

Instead of Government welfare why not let the Churches, Civic Groups, and concerned citizens help those truly in need?

Q= When you talk about Welfare are you including those in the U.S. on Social Security?

A= Definitely not. Social Security and pensions are earned income. People paid into both systems with a promise of a return upon reaching a certain age. However I don't like the Government involved in either because government usually skims off the top and/or uses money owed those who earned it, for political leverage. I think a system like the one I propose for the RNA is better. For instance, unlike Social Security and even some pensions, when you die the money you saved gets passed on to your family because it will be in a savings account, not in the government's pocket. Q-= Why do you say the church should help people in need and not the government?

A= When the government helps someone the government feels it is owed something for its help. That something could be their vote, obedience, or freedom. When the church helps someone that person is not obligated to the church because God commands the church to help those in need anyway. Many churches in the U.S. have forgotten this commandment.

The church must lead through giving. The one that gives charity is the one with the power. This is why government wants to be the one that gives people what they want, in the form of Welfare, Food Stamps, OPM (other people's money) etc? They want power and control. The church must position itself to be ready to handle the needy as the Bible commands. Government must not be allowed to become the "savior" of mankind when things fall apart. Mankind has a savior and it's not government. The Christians church need to do as the Bible says, love they neighbor.

Q= Do you really think that it is the people on, what you call, welfare (government assistance) fault for being on Government Assistance.

A= With some of them it is, but most of the fault lies with Government. When you have a progressive administration who encourages people not to work, this makes these people so dependent on this administration they do as instructed, to keep their welfare going. This same administration has stifled growth with its policies of taxing and spending, oppressive regulations, punishment of businesses (except those it favors), the refusal to allow drilling or anything else that might pull the U.S. out of this death spiral it is entering.

To me it seems as if the Progressives has planned it this way because no one could be this stupid on purpose.

Q= You say one should save for retirement and buy his or her own health insurance. Most people will not do this.

A= If a citizen of the Republic of New America is not willing to do this, then that citizen should find a job that offers a pension and health insurance. A person not willing to plan and save for his or her future (take responsibility) probably should not become a citizen of the Republic of New America. A government that takes care of you owns you. The question is what will that government want? How long can such a government take care of you and others like you before it is broke and falls apart?

Q= After reading your book it seems to me that you hate the U.S.

A= On the contrary, I love the U.S. If I did not, I would not care what path the U.S. Government took, thus I would not have written this book. I write this book to wake Americans up. I write this book in hope of a change in the U.S. Government. That it will return back to its Constitution and responsible government. By writing this book I stick my neck out to save the U.S.

Because I write this book I will be hated by most of the Liberals, all of the Progressives, Leftist, and Marxist plus most Democrats and many Republicans. Those that will hate me have their own selfish interest at heart and not what's best for the United States or its people.

In my opinion the time left to save the U.S. as a Republic is almost gone. Too many citizens are on the dole. Much of the government is corrupt. I wonder if there is enough morality left for a Republic to survive. I will try to save the Republic anyway. How about you? If I fail there is always the Republic of New America. Yes, we may have to start over!

Thank you for reading my ebook. If interested, you can find more Q&A's that I received after this ebook was published in 2010 on my blog "Free America" at : http://freeamericablogger.blogspot.com/

This drawing of the Republic of New American is only for reference and may not be the actual size or shape of our new county. In this drawing, there are 8 states shown. The states are divided by 8 super highways (interstates) that lead to and from the Federal Capitol (Liberty City). Liberty City is in the center of a traffic circle. Roads (not shown) off the super highways can be built as needed. Also, states, counties, cities and towns are not named. This is to be done by the citizens of the Republic of New America.

